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Question and Answers from the Draft Request for Proposal.
Based on comments from the Draft RFP, the historically hours have been added to the Performance Work Statement (PWS) (Attachment 1, Appendix A).  The Position Classification used to establish the Government estimate and the incumbent contractor employees’ service times were added as Attachment 16.  The demand CLINs were changed from 30% of the NASA work to read “31% of the yearly total contract value minus phase in and travel.”  Data Requirements were corrected or updated.  The current Sample and Analysis Plan has been added as Attachment 15.  A list of historical materials and services sent off-site has been added for reference to the PWS (attachment 1).  There were also minor changes made throughout the RFP.  ALL interested parties are required to read the entire RFP prior to submitting a proposal.

1)
(Q). Is the contractor required to furnish all materials and external costs for technical services, like off-site repair services? 

(A). Yes, historically data can be located in the PWS (Attachment 1, appendix B) 
2)
(Q). Is the offeror to include only the contractor labor cost in the labor hour rate? 
(A). The loaded rate is defined in the solicitation on page 7 of the RFP.   
3) 
(Q). Does the cost per labor hour for demand work include full cost accounting?

(A). Each labor rate hour in demand work is fully loaded with overhead, G&A, Etc.  Loaded labor rates will not include the overhead adders as discussed on page 7 of RFP.  (Page 7 of RFP and MF01)
4)
(Q). For CLIN 004, 007, &010 is the demand work approximately 30% of CLIN 002 or approximately 30% total effort.
(A). The demand work is approximately 31% of total yearly contract value.   The NASA direct work is 69% of total yearly contract.  (See CLIN 004, 007, & 010)
5)
(Q). “All travel shall be approved by the Contracting Officer 72 hours prior to the planned travel”. What about cases with less than 72 hours?
(A). When travel is necessary within 72 hours, the contractor shall notify the Contracting Officer as soon as the travel has been identified. (See page 9 of RFP, section Travel)
6)
(Q). The travel section of RFP page 9 states, “The contractor will not receive overhead, G&A or profit on travel cost”. How does the contractor get reimbursed for making travel arrangements, arranging payments, or otherwise dealing with costs associated with travel requirements? 

(A). The Government has provided the NTE “plug” number for travel in a separate CLIN.  The contract being proposed is a firm fixed price for NASA direct work and a fixed loaded labor rate for demand work.  Cost for making travel arrangements, arranging payment or otherwise dealing with cost associated with travel requirements could be factored in these area, or not at all.  It is a business strategy decision solely the risk of the offeror in pricing this requirement.  (Page 9 of RFP)
7) 
(Q).  Some equipment or special tests are needed to be sent outside of NASA for repair or calibration, including standards which must be sent to NIST. How will this be performed in the new contract?  Does the offeror need to price this with in the proposal?

(A).  Yes, historical information can be located in the PWS (Attachment1, Appendix B).  
8)
Under 1852.242-72 OBSERVANCE OF LEGAL HOLIDAYS (AUG 1992) ALTERNATE II (OCT 2000) sub-clause f.
(Q). Will NASA provide separate funding for minor dismissals (1 or 2 days)?
(A).  NASA will not provide separate funding for dismissals.  (Page 29 for Observance of Legal Holidays of RFP)
9)
(Q). Is the contractor required to purchase consumables, repair parts, and other materials needed to perform the work. If so, how would the cost be accounted for in the pricing? Will the offer need to maintain its own procurement activity? 

(A). The offeror is required to provide all consumables, repair parts, or other materials needed to support the services described in the PWS.  The offeror will include all material cost to the NASA direct work, demand customers that uses these materials shall be responsible for an adder to cover the material charge.  A detailed explanation can be located on page 8 of RFP.  Historically information can be located in the PWS (Attachment 1, Appendix B & C).   
10)
(Q). DM01 lists DM04 as a reference, but there is no DM04.


(A). DM04 was removed as a reference.

11)
(Q). DM02 lists DM03 as a reference but there is no DM03


(A). DM03 was removed as a reference.

12)
(Q). DM02 lists NPD 1441.1, current schedule is under NPR 1441.1.


(A). DM02 updated to reflect NPR1441.1.
13) (Q). DM02 Scope says a filing system is a requirement. Yet SPR 1441.1 lists it as a recommendation. 

(A). DM02 was changed to reflect the wording of SPR 1441.1.
14)
(Q). DM02 in preparation instructions lists SLP 16, we can’t locate this document.

(A). DM02 was updated to reflect SPR 1441.1.

15)
(Q). EN01 – monthly drinking water forms.  Are the forms due the 22nd of the month or the last day of the month?  


(A). EN01 was updated to reflect the last day of the calendar month.

16)
(Q) EN03 Scope says the contractor will develop and maintain the sampling plan.   Currently, the development of the SSC sampling plan is completed by the LSC contract by referencing the FOSC contractor deliverables inclusive of the Long term Operational Monitoring Plan, the SSC site Microbiological Sample Plan, the Groundwater Monitoring Plan, and the current NPDES permits maintained by NASA. These documents are the driving force behind the SSC Sample Plan. LSC contractor has no vision to these documents, no control over changes to these documents or changes in frequency of sampling. The deciding factors are between the State Department of Environmental quality and the Mississippi State Department of Health, and the FOSC contractor working in conjunction with the NASA EO.   

(A). Contractor is required to coordinate with NASA Environmental Officer (EO) and the FOSC EO in order to develop a sampling and analysis plan.  (see EN03)  Attachment 15 provides an Annual Sample Plan.
17) (Q). Is there a Data Requirement for CERLA long term monitoring?

(A). EN06 was added.

18)
(Q). MA02 References list SPG 1040.1 which has been canceled.


(A). MA02 deleted the reference to SPG1040.1.

19)
(Q). MF01 says delivery is monthly. Is this supposed to be weekly?

 
(A). MF01 delivery is weekly.  
20) (Q). MF03 under Exceptions says current practice is to report overruns. Is this correct? 
(A). This Exception was removed from MF03.
21)
(Q). PT01 references lists NPG 2810.1 but it appears to have changed to NPD or NPR?

(A). NPR 2810.1A is the correct references for PT01.
22)
(Q). The Performance Requirement Summary identifies a performance measure as “Use of Resources” is this correct for a firm fixed price contact?


(A). The performance measure “Use of Resources” has been removed. (see attachment 4, Performance Requirements Summary)
23)
(Q).  The solicitation states the effort is a firm fixed price contract for commercial services.  Is this based on certain labor categories, labor rates and estimated hours for each labor rate?    If so, it would be more like a fixed unit rate verses a firm fixed price for the contract as the number of calibrations and actions per years are unpredictable.  Please Clarify.
(A).  The NASA direct CLIN is calculated by the offeror after assessing the PWS requirements, contract requirements, period of performance and historical workload.  The offeror prices the NASA direct CLIN after determining the labor categories, number of WYE, number of hours, labor rates, overhead, any other direct costs, G&A and profit in a rolled up cost per month extended out to the number of months in the period of performance.  This firm fixed price remains unchanged unless there is a variation in the workload by at least 15%.  The workload variation is applicable to the NASA direct CLIN only.  The NASA demand work is composed of the contractor providing a loaded hourly rate for each of the labor categories.  The loaded hourly rate should include all costs.   The demand CLIN is for work which may be ordered by Stennis Space Center tenants.  For demand work, it is the offeror that provides an estimate to the benefiter/requester/approver of the price to perform the work in advance of performing.  If the work is determined to cost more than originally estimated, the contractor seeks approval for the increase from the benefiter/requester/approver before proceeding.  If at the conclusion of the work, the price is less than estimated, notification is provided the benefiter/requester/approver so that the funds can be reduced from the Stennis Work Request.
24)
(Q). What is the total number of personnel on this contract and what are their job descriptions (both exempt and non-exempt) and level of effort per year?  
(A). Each offeror is expected to propose its own staffing.  See Solicitation clause(s) 52.212-1 and 52.212-2 in the solicitation in attachment 11.  An offeror’s understanding of the work requested and the classification of worker needed to perform the work is part of the evaluation criteria.  The NASA direct CLIN will encompass all labor classifications, hours, labor rates, overhead, any ODCs, G&A and profit necessary to perform the required services for the identified period of performance.  The Demand CLIN is based on a loaded hourly rate.  Loaded hourly rate meaning all costs, e.g. hourly rate, overhead, ODC, G&A and profit for each labor classification hour.  See attachment 6 to the solicitation.  If and when work is requested under the demand CLIN by any of Stennis’ tenants, the contractor will provide an estimate of the price to perform based upon the loaded labor rates in attachment 6.  Offerors shall not include overhead add-ons in their loaded hourly rates. (Page 7 of the RFP)
25)
(Q). Attachment 6 only gives three labor categories.  Please provide labor categories to bid.

(A). The classification of employees, numbers of them, hour required to perform are all business strategy decisions of each offeror in this competitive acquisition.  See Solicitation clauses 52.212-1 and 52.212-2 at Attachment 11 of the solicitation.  The three positions in attachment 6 are only examples.  The position descriptions use to prepare the Government estimate are defined in attachment 16.
26)
(Q).  The PWS states:  NASA and its resident agencies work various tours of duty.  The contractor shall be required to cover normal work hours (define as 7:00a.m. – 5:00 p.m.).  At times, some operations may require up to 24-hour per day, 7 days a week support contingent upon program requirements.  Program requirements and schedule will dictate types and quantities of skills and work hours.  Short-term technical tasks may require the contactor to provide highly specialized technical personnel or services for special designs when necessary.  Can NASA provide an estimate of the operations that may require up to 24/7 coverage and the types of labor categories that will support these 24/7 operations?
(A). Operations that require hours outside of normal work hours historically have averaged twice a month with the majority of the work supporting the Gas and Material Lab. (Page 1 of PWS, Attachment 1, section C.1.1 General).
27)
(Q).  The Draft RFQ was lacking in the number and personnel required to do the task.  If the number and types of personnel are not provided then the historical actions per year listed in PWS Attachment 1, Appendix A must be detailed on an equipment list basis and type of service performed in order to man load the task.
(A). This solicitation is an RFP rather than an RFQ.    The number and classification of personnel required to provide the requested services is evaluation criteria.  See 52.212-1 and 52.212-2 at Attachment 11 of the solicitation.  The Government anticipates that offerors with experience in the laboratory services required under the PWS will be able to determine classifications, number of personnel, and hours along with all the other cost elements necessary to propose a firm-fixed price for NASA direct CLINs and loaded labor hour rates for the demand CLINS.  Attachment 1 can not be detailed on an equipment list basis and type of service performed because no detailed data exists. Historical hours have been provided to assist with detailing the effort.  (PWS Attachment 1, Appendix A)
28)
(Q). Please provide a copy of the latest Sampling and Analysis Plan that covers all activities covered in PWS C.3.5?

(A). The latest Sampling and Analysis plan is provided. (see Attachment 15)
29)
(Q). For the field work and pick up/deliveries of equipment as specified in the PWS how many vehicles are provided as GFE?

(A). Currently 1 vehicle is provided for pick up/deliveries of equipment.  (see page 4 of PWS section C.2.2.3 Property Management)
30)
(Q). How much field sampling equipment will be provided as GFE?

(A). All GFE is listed in attachment 3
31)
(Q). No data on the number of instruments to be sent off-site to original manufactures and vendors for instruments that can’t be serviced at SSC.  What is the number per year and cost per year and who pays for these?  

(A). Historical data can be located in PWS (Attachment 1, appendix B & C).  
32)
(Q).  The historical baseline in PWS Attachment1, Appendix A is the number of actions per year.  This data does not list types of actions and types of equipment services.  Can you please provide the number and types of equipment that are services per year?

(A).  The number and types of equipment that are services per year varies from year to year.  Due to upgrades and switching of equipment, there is no detailed data to provide.  The historical hours have been provided to assist with detailing the effort.  (PWS Attachment 1, Appendix A)

33)
(Q)  Page 11 of Attachment 1 states that specialized techniques such as:

· X Ray Fluorescence Spectrometry

· Dispersive Infrared Spectroscopy

· Automated Gas Chromatography

· Thermoelectric Testing

· Coulometric Moisture Analysis

· Paramagnetic Oxygen Analysis

· Inductive Coupled Plasma Spectrometry

· Fourier Transform Infrared (FTIR) Spectrophotometry

· FTIR Microscopy and Attenuated Total Reflectance

· FTIR Photoacoustic Spectroscopy

· FTIR Transmission Gas Analysis

· Scanning Electron Microscopy: Includes Energy-Dispersive Spectrometry (EDS) and Wavelength-Dispersive Spectrometry (WDS) Microanalysis

Is the equipment for this specialized techniques provided as GFE?
(A). Yes. (see attachment 3 of RFP, Government Furnished Equipment)
34) (Q). How do the contractor achieve an accurate spread of the cost to varying levels of service SWR’s from different customers for NASA direct Work.
(A). NASA direct CLIN is a firm fixed amount proposed by the contractor and set forth in the awarded contract on a monthly unit extended to a total yearly cost.  Each organization that is included in the workload historical makeup of NASA direct customers is a contributor to funding of the NASA direct CLIN.  This funding contribution occurs irrespective of whether that direct customer issues any SWRs for laboratory services or not during the performance period.  The cost accounting charged each of the customers weekly (see MF01) for NASA direct is the same amount in subsequent reporting months, weeks, or days unless there is a contract change increasing or decreasing the workload with an equitable adjustment made to the NASA direct CLIN.  As an example if there are five NASA direct customers responsible for funding the NASA direct CLIN, then the amount of funding is dependent on the historical workload associated with that customer.  If historically, NASA direct work cost $300,000 per month and Customer 1 has been historically 20% of that amount, Customer 2 at 10%, Customer 3 at 15%, Customer 4 at 25% and Customer 5 at 30% of the sum total; then, these percentages would be applied to the total cost of the NASA direct CLIN to apportion funding responsibility.   The submission of cost files, the contractor's cost files submitted weekly, & monthly (see MF01) are the same amounts in subsequent reporting periods unless there is an increase or decrease in the NASA direct CLIN.    As an example based on above percentage:

NASA direct                                 12 (Month)           1 (Year)                   
   $100,000           $1,200,000                     
Customer 1 share is     12    MO      $20,000       $240,000                                                                                             Customer 2 share is     12    MO      $10,000       $120,000                                                                                             Customer 3 share is     12    MO      $15,000       $180,000                                                                                           Customer 4 share is     12    MO      $25,000       $300,000                                                                                             Customer 5 share is     12    MO      $30,000       $360,000                                                                                            
The cost files submitted for the NASA direct CLIN are going to look the same with each submission broken down to the reporting categories Stennis Finance requires (see MF01 & MF 07) for each reporting period until a contract change to the NASA Direct CLIN.                                                                                                                                                                                   The travel CLIN is cost reimbursement with no allowance for overhead, G&A, or profit.  So the benefiter/requester/approver of the SWR requiring travel will have, in addition to its fixed price a cost file that charges the reimbursable travel.  (Page 6 of RFP NASA Direct Work Description)
35)
(Q). Can you provide the manufacturer and model numbers for the equipment listed in attachment 3?

(A). That information does not exist.  (Attachment 3 for detail list of equipment)

36)
(Q). Will this procurement remain an 8(a) set-aside?


(A). This procurement is an 8(a) set-aside restricted to region IV and VI.  (Attachment 11, section A Restrictions)

37)
(Q). Will three be a site visit before the final RFP is formally issued?


(A). No, refer to RFP for site visit information. (Attachment 11, for scheduled site visit)

38) 
(Q). With the phase out of the Space Shuttle, how does the Space Shuttle Main Engine (SSME) affect the future work for the laboratory services?


(A). The Space Shuttle Main Engine work may decline in the future; however Stennis is anticipating other projects to increase.  The decline of the SSME work will be closely monitored and the need to exercise the variation in estimated quantities (RFP page 9) will be considered for the functional area in question.

39)
(Q).  Page 4 of PWS (attachment 1, section C.2.2.3 Property Management) states “The Contractor shall be responsible for the custodial accountability, tracking, operation, maintenance, servicing, and repair of all assigned property in accordance with the Stennis Space Center  (SSC) Property Management System”.  Does the contractor need to include a price for maintenance to Government Furnished Equipment?

(A). No, The contractor will utilize the MR system for services that deal with the Government Furnished Equipment.  (Page 6 of RFP)
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